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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
" A Professional Accounting Corporation 

The Honorable Patrick Richard, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Grand Coteau, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Grand Coteau, Louisiana (the Town), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of 
the Town as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are required to be independent of the Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govennnent 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, foreery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In perfonning an audit in accordance with generally aceepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards. we: 

• Exercise professional judiunent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to ti-aud or error. and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sigiificant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events. considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ahility to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally aceepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary 
comparison schedules on pages 39 through 43 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Sueh 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required hy the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational. economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the inforniation and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements. and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 



The Town has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such missing information_ although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Supplementaty Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively compnse the Town's hasic financial statements. The accompanying justice system funding 
schedule included in other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such inlimnation is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, includim comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the justice system 
funding schedule is fairly stated. in all material respects. in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Infirmation 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information included in other supplementary information comprises the schedule of insurance in force but does 
not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial 
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
inthrmation and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other inthrmation and the basic 
fmancial statements, or the other mforniation otherwise appears to he materially misstated. If, based on the 
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are 
required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standord8 

In accordance with Govermnott Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 
20, 2023. on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
December 20, )013 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2023 

ASSETS 

Ciovernmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

   

Cash and interest-hearing deposits $3,149.849 $ 370,432 $3.520,281 
Investments 52.858 

 

52,858 

Receivables. net 7.048 80,065 87.113 
Due frorn other governmental units 143.882 

 

143.882 
Prepaid items 10,615 1,806 12.421 

Internal balances (42,934) 42,934 

 

Restricted assets: 

   

Cash and interest-hearing deposits 

 

180,976 180,976 

Capital assets: 

   

Land and construction in progress 143,375 24,000 167.375 

Capital assets. net 717.111 2,619,194 3.336.305 

Total assets 4,181,804 3,319,407 7,501,211 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts and other payables 66,928 40,571 107,499 
Accrued interest payable 

 

460 460 
Custoiner deposits 

 

98,927 98,927 

Compensated absences payable 26.111 33,396 59,507 
Long-tenn liabilities: 

   

Due within one year 7.569 31,226 38,795 
Due afler one year 24.715 144,146 168,861 

Total liabilities 11•7,.313 348.726 474,049 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 828,200 ),513,352 3,341,55/ 
Restricted 1,878,305 81,467 1,959,772 
Unrestricted 1.349,976 375,862 1,725,838 

Total net position $4,056A81 S2,970.681 S7.027,162 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 
Fol the Year Ended June 30. 2023 

Activities 

F'r ogram Revenue• 

 

Nei (Expense) Revenues and 
Changes in Net Position Operatmg 

Fees. RIM'S Mid GratitS and 
Ex lenses Charges for Services Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Ciannbutions 
Gs Well mental 

Activities 
Busuiess-Type 

Activities Total 
Governmental activities 

     

General governmelit $ -165 280 S 68.654 

 

$ (396 626) 

 

$ (396.626) 
Publk safety 

     

Pohce 675 293 312 833 33.857 

 

i_F.6t731 

 

(328%603) 
Fite 191 540 

 

(191.540) 

 

O91.540) 
Highways and streets 223 757 3.330 

 

(220427) 

 

(220.427) 
Culnur and recreation 9 916 

 

(9.916) 

 

(9.916) 
Interest le long-tenn debt l 7111 

 

(1.701) 

 

(1.701) 

Total governmental activities 1.567 487 312 833 105,841 

 

tl.148.8131 

 

11.148.8134 

Busmess-type acuvines: 

     

Gas 1 47.547 145.1111 22.642 97.865 

 

18.07ir 18,070 
Water 232.I4X 178.428 167.631 

  

114.011 114.011 
Setva 216.632 2Tt.459 

  

82.827 ti2 827 

Total huswess-type ac twines 696 327 623 097 190,273 97.865 

 

214 908 214.908 

Totai $ 2 263 814 $ 935 9;0 S 296.114 s 97 865 (1.148.813) 214 94i8 i,933.905) 

 

General revenues. 

     

Taxes - 

     

Property taXes, levied foi genetal Imposes 

 

122.533 

 

122.533 

 

Sales and use taxes, levied foi geneial 11urp1seS 

 

220.151 

 

221) 151 

 

Sales and use taxes, levied for specitk purposes 

 

444.577 

 

4-44,577 

 

Frant.hise taxes 

 

10-1.111 

 

104,111 

 

OLLupational licenses and tither permits 

 

71.823 

 

/1.823 

 

Staie heel tax 

 

1.815 

 

1 815 

 

Raclittl income 

 

25.412 

 

25,412 

 

Video poker levenne 

 

552.614 

 

552,614 

 

Interest and investment earnings 

 

2.560 585 3.143 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

30.670 4 30 6/4 

 

Dam:fen: 

 

199.926 (199.926) 

  

Total general revenues and transfers 

 

1.776.192 (199 337) 1.576.855 

 

Change in net position 

 

627 379 15 571 642.950 

 

Net position - beginning 

 

3.429 102 2 955 110 6.384.212 

 

Net position - eliding 

 

S 4.056.481 S 2.970.681 S 7.027.162 

The occompal tying rt, e an inteaal part of the basic financial statements. 



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) 

8 



MAJOR FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

General Fund 

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with €overnments which are not required 
to be accounted for in another fund 

Special Res enue Fund  

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

Sales Tax Fund  
To account for the collection and expenditure of the Town's one percent sales tax that is legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific purposes 

2010 Sales Tax Fund  
Tn account for the proceeds of a one percent sales and use tax that is legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purposes. 

TIF District Fund 
Tn account for the proceeds of a two percent sales arid use tax and two percent hotel occupancy tax that is legally 
restricted to expenditures for specitic purposes. 

Enterprise Funds 

Gas Fund  

To account for the provision of gas services to residents of the Town All activities necessary to provide such 
services are accounted for in this fund. including. but not limited to. administration. operations. maintenance, 
financing related debt semce, and bilhng and collection. 

Water Fund  

To account for the provision of water services to residents of the Town. All activities necessary to provide such 
services are accounted for in this fund. including, hut not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, 
financing related debt service, and billing and collection. 

Sewer Fund  

To account for the provision of sewer services to residents of the Town. All activities necessary to provide such 
services are accounted for in this fund. includine, but not limited to. administration, operations. maintenance. 
financing related debt service. and billing and collection. 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2023 

 

Gencral Sales Tax 
2010 

Sales Tax 
TIF 

District Tutal 

ASSETS 

     

Cash and interest-hearing deposits 51,182,435 $ 423,953 $392,347 S1,151,114 $3.149,849 
Investments 5/,858 

  

- 52,858 

Receivables - 

     

Taxes 7,048 

  

- 7,048 
Due from other funds 99,096 1,921 

 

- 101,017 

Due from other governmental units 143,882 

  

- 143.882 
Prepaid items 10 615 

  

- 10,615 

Total assets S1,495.934 S 425,874 S 39-1,347 S1,151.114 S3.465,269 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

     

Accounts payable S 67,'1"' S S S /,337 $ 64,559 
Accrued liabilities 2 369 

   

2,369 
Due to other funds 123,437 

 

20,514 - 143,951 

Total liabihties 188.028 

 

20.514 2,337 210.870 

Fund balances - 

     

Nonspendable - prepaid items 10,615 

   

10.615 

Restricted - sales tax dedications 

 

425.874 371,833 1,148,777 1.946.484 
unassigned 1,297,291 

   

1.297.291 

Total fund balances 1,307,906 4-'5.874 371,833 1,148,777 3.254.390 

Total liabilities and fhnd balances $1,495,934 S 425,874 $392,347 $1,151,114 $3.465,269 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TC)WN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2023 

Total fund balances for governmental funds at June 30, 2023 

 

$3.154.390 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 

position is difkrent because: 

  

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 

and, therefore, are not reported in the fimds. Those assets consist of: 

  

Land and construction in progress $143,375 

 

Buildings and improvements, net of $190,784 accumulated depreciation 184,942 

 

Infrastructure, net of $9(10,794 accumulated depreciation 333,789 

 

Equipment, net of $539,878 accumulated depreciation 198.380 860,486 

Some liabilities are not due and payahle from current financial resources 

and are, therefore not reported in the funds. These liabihties consist 

of the following: 

  

Note payable (32,284) 

 

Compensated absences (26.111) (58,395) 

Total net position of governmental activities at Junc 30. 20'3 

 

4.056.48 l 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ot the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2023 

 

General Salt-, Tax 
2010 

Sales, Tax 
TIF 

Total 
Revenues. 

     

Taxes $ 116,644 S 220.151 S 220,151 S 224,426 $ 891,372 
Licenses and permits 75.569 

   

75.569 
Intergovernmental 694,765 

   

694,765 

Fines and forfeits 312.833 

   

311833 

Miscellaneous 24.139 5 

 

3 24.147 

Total revenues 1,333.950 ' 10.156 220.151 224.429 1 998.6S6 

Expenditures. 

     

Current - 

     

General government 392.384 16.109 17.040 1 9.751 455.285 
Public safety. 

     

Police 664.827 

   

664.827 

Fire 178.263 

   

178.263 

Highways and streets 179.745 

   

179.745 
Parks and recreation 7.373 - 

  

7.373 
Capital outlav 72.356 

   

72.356 

Debt service 8.958 

   

8.958 

Total expenditures 1,503.906 16.109 17.040 19.751 1,566.807 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (169.956) 204.1)47 203,111 194.677 431.879 

Other financing sources (uses/ 

     

Transfers in 459.9≥6 

   

459.926 

Transfers out - (130.000) (130A)00) 

 

(260.000) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 459.926 (130.1)00) (130,0(t0) 

 

199.9'6 

Net change in fund balance 1 89.97(1 74.047 73.111 194.677 631.805 

Fund balances, beginning 1.017.936 351.817 298.722 954.100 2.622.585 

Fund balances, ending S 1.1107.906 S 425.74 S 371.'763 s l .148,777 5 3 . 24. :;,)i) 

The accompanying, notes are an integral part cif the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Reconcihation of the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures. and 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Total net changes in fiind balances for the year ended June 30, 2023 per the 
statement of revenues. expenditures and changes in fund balances $ 631.805 

The change in net position reported for governmental actit nies in the 
statement of activities is different because. 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2023 

Bond and capital lease proceeds are reported as financing sources in 
goveminental funds and thus contrihute to the chanee in fund balance 

In the statement of net position. however, issuing debt increases long-
term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities. Sinnlarly, 
repayment of principal and capital leases are recorded as expenditures 

in the governmental funds but reduce liahility in the stateinent of net 
position. Also, governmental fiinds report the effects of premiums, 
discounts, and similar itenis when deht is first issued, whereas these 

amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. 

Repayment of long-term debt 

$ 72,357 

(84.040) 11.(is3) 

  7,257      

Total changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2023 per the 

statement of activities $ t77.?79 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 

Propnetary Futhls 

Business-Type Activines - Enterprise Fluids 

June 30, 2023 

 

Gas 

Fluid 

Water 

Fund 

Sewer 

Fund Total 

ASSETS 

    

Current assets 

    

Cash and interest-beantig deposits S 77,214 S 127.3u1 S 120,509 S 3 15,024 

Receivables - 

    

Accounts. net 24.792 28,673 26.6(to go o65 

Due from other funds 169.1182 

 

10.308 179.390 

Prepaid Items 533 679 594 1 806 

Total citnent assets 271,621 156,653 158.011 5S6.285 

Noncunent assets: 

    

Restricted assets - 

    

Customers' deposits - 

Cash and intelest-bearnig deposits 93,759 67,028 65.597 226.384 

Land and constniction in progress 

  

24.000 24 000 

Capital assets. net 76.289 1.503,179 1 039.726 2,619.194 

Total noncurrent assets 1 70 048 l .570.'07 1.129.323 2.869.578 

Total assets 441.669 l .726,860 1.287.334 3.455.863 

LIABILITIES 

    

Current liabilities (payable finm cunent assets?: 

    

Accotuits payable 11,922 18.1173 10.576 40.571 

Notes l'ayable 7,965 

  

7.965 

Due to whet funds 

 

109.661 26.795 136.456 

Total 19.887 127.734 37.371 1/4.99.2 

Cunent habilities (payable hom restricted assets): 

    

Customer deposits 48,229 50.698 

 

98.927 

Compensated absences 25.784 6.671 041 33,396 

Accrued interest payable 

 

460 

 

460 

Revenue bonds payable 

 

15,000 8.2(,1 23,261 

Total 74,013 72,829 9. -1/11 156.044 

Total current liabilities 93.900 700.563 46. ' 1 341.036 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

    

Notes payable 11.694 

  

11 cv)4 

Revenue bonds payable 

 

31,000 101.457 132.452 

Total 11.694 31.000 101.452 144.146 

Total liabilities 105,594 '31.563 148.025 485.182 

NET POSITION 

    

Net investment in capital assets 102,160 1.457,179 954.013 '.513.35' 

Restncted 

 

15.870 65.597 81.467 

Unrestricted 233.915 22.248 119.699 375.862 

Total net puLitmn S 336,075 S1,495.297 S 1,139,309 S2,970,681 

The accompanymg notes are an integral par1 of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Chanees in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Ftmds 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2023 

 

Gas 

Fund 

Water 

Fund 

Sewer 

Fund Total 

Operating revenues: 

    

Charges for services '99.459 $ 139,443 $ 178.528 S 617.430 

Miscellaneous 4 5,667 

 

5 J)71 

Total operating revenues 199.463 145,110 178.528 623.101 

Operating expenses: 

    

Personal services 53,797 58,893 37.583 150,273 

Contractual cervices 102,999 

 

6.869 109.868 

Supphes 7,%8 24,688 2.444 35.100 

C)ther expenses 31.960 123,571 80.987 236.518 

Depreciation 17.936 38,595 99.588 156,119 

Total operating expenses 214.660 245,747 227.471 687.878 

Operating income (loss) 84.8(13 (100,637) (48.943) (64.777) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

    

Interest income 428 16 141 585 

Grant revenue - 22.642 1 6-M3 1 190.273 

Interest and fiscal charges (1.972) (1.800) (4.677) (8.449) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,544) 20.858 163.O5 182.4t19 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 83,259 (79.779) 114.152 117.632 

Capital contributions 

 

97. 8(» 

 

97.865 

Income before transfers 83,259 18.086 114.152 215.497 

Transfers 

Transfers in (out) 20,300 95.813 016.049) (1 99.920) 

Change in net position 1113,559 113.909 (201.897) 15.571 

Net position. beginning 232,516 1.381.388 1 341.2116 2.955.110 

Net position. ending S 336.075 S 1.495.297 $ 1.139.309 S 2.97Q681 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Propnetary Fund 

Foi the Year Ended June 3U, 2023 

 

Gas 

F und 

Water 

Fiuid 

Sewer 

hind Total 

Cash flows front operating activities: 

    

Receipts twin customers S 315,297 $ l95.2s() S 194,398 $ 704.945 

Payments to suppliers (143,342) (146.(i42) (83,2941 (373.278) 

Payments to employees (53,797) (58.893) (37,5831 (150.273) 

Other receipts 4 - - -1 

Net cash provided (used) by opeiating activities 118.162 (10.285) 73.521 181.398 

Cash tlows frotin noncapital financing activities: 

    

Net nicrease iu customer deposits payable 4,780 4 604 

 

9,384 

Net transfers to other funds (84,318) 2 H .7:14 (312.2061 (184,740) 

Net cash provided tused) hy noncapital financing activities (79 5314) 216.3g8 1312.206) (175 35(0 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 

    

Principal paid .tia revenue bonds and notes payahle (16,0710 (14.0oo) (6,6841 (36,7(i2) 

huerest paid on revenue bonds and lat ites payable (1,972) (3,140) (4,6771 (9,789) 

Grant proceetls 

 

l2u.s07 167,631 288.138 

Net puichase of capital assets 

 

(177.s64) (6,5331 (184.097) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (18,050) t 74.197) 149,737 57.490 

Cash flows fr.tin unestwµ activities: 

    

Net maturities (purchases) of investments (128) 

 

(11 I ) (239) 

Interest received on interest-beanng deposits 428 16 141 585 

Net cash provided by investing activities 3tat 10 30 346 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equlvalentc 20.874 131.922 t 88.91h) 63 878 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 10:‘,379 62.407 243.150 408.936 

Cash and cash equivalents. ending ti 124 253 t 194.329 S I s:t 232 ti 472.814 

    

(colitinued) 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Statement ot Cash Flows (Counnued) 

Propnetary Fund 

Foi the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

Gas 

F und 

Water 

Fiuid 

Sewer 

hind Total 

Reconcihation of operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by operating activities 

    

Operaung income (hiss) S 84,803 $ (100,637) S (48,9-131 S (64,777) 

Adjustments to reconcile operaUng income (loss) 

to net cash provided (used) by opeiating activities - 

    

Depreciation 17.936 38.51)5 99.588 156 119 

ChAnµec in current assets and liabilities: 

    

Deciease in accounts lei:els:able 15.838 50,140 15,870 81.848 

(Inciease) decrease in accounts payable (-I 15t 1.617 7,006 8,208 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities S 118.162 $ 1,10.285) S 73.521 S 181 398 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per 

statement of cash flows to the balance sheet: 

    

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning - 

    

Cash and inteiest-beaniii! deposits - unrestricted S $ - S 211.107 S 272.345 

Cash and inteiest-beaniii! deposits - iestricted .733 62,407 63,806 214.946 

Less Certificates of deposit with a maturity greater 

tban three months when purchased 14o 592) 

 

(31.763) (78.355) 

Total cash and cash equivalents 103.379 62.407 243,150 408,936 

Cash and cash equivalents, ending - 

    

Cash and intelest-bearing deposits - unrestncted 77.214 127.301 120.509 335.024 

Cash and interest-heanng deposits - restncted 413 759 67.028 65,597 "6.384 

Less Ceitificates of deposit with a maturity greatei 

than thiee months when purchased (40.- 2(>) 

 

(31,874) (78.594) 

Total cash and cash equivalents 124,253 19-1.32Q 154.232 472.814 

Net increase (deei ease) S 20.874 g 131.022 S I bS,9181 S 63.878 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ot the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

t 1 ) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the Town of Grand Coteau, Limisiana (the Town) 
have heen prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. The accounting and reporting policies of the Town also conform to the recluirements 
of Louisiana Re‘ised Statute 24.513. the Louisiana Governmental Audit Ginde. and to the industry 
audit guide, Audits of State and Local Governmental Units. The accounting and reporting framework 
and the more significant accounting policies are described below. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

The Town was incorporated under the provisions of the Lawrason Act. The 
Town operates under the Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of government. 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes. the Town of 
Grand Coteau is considered a separate tinancial reporting entity The tinancial 
reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (municipality), 0A 
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, (c) other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete, and (d) organizations that are closely 
related to, or fmancially integrated with the prirnary government. 

Section 2100 of the 2011 Ciovernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Codification col Governmental Accounting und Financial Reporting Standards, 
"Defining the Financial Reporting Entity." estahlishes criteria for determining which 
entities should he considered a component unit and, as such, part of the reporting entity 
for financial reporting purposes. The hasic criteria are as follows: 

Legal status of the potential component unit including the right to incur its 
own deht, levy its own taxes and charges, expropriate property in its own 
name, sue and be sued, and the nght to huy, sell and lease property in its 
own name. 
Whether the primary govenunent's governing authority (Nlayor and Board 
of Aldermen) appoints a majoritv of hoard members of the potential 
component unit and is able to impose its will on the potential component 
unit or whether the potential component unit is fiscally dependent on the 
primary government. 

3. Financial henefitburden relationship between the primary government 
and the potential component unit. 

4. The nature and significance of the relationship between the potential 
component unit with the primary government are such that exclusion 
would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

The Town is a pnmary government and has no component units. The 
accompanying financial statements present information only on the funds maintained 
by the Town and do not present information on any other go‘ernmental unit. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The government-wide tinancial statements provide operational accountability 
information for the Town as an economic unit. The gm ernment-wide financial 
statements report the Town's ability to maintain service levels and continue to meet its 
obligations as they come due. The statements include all governmental activities and 
all business-type activities of the primary government. The Town has no fiduciary 
funds. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and 
program revenues for each function of the Town's governmental and business-type 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Progam 
re‘enues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered 
by the programs. and (b) urants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a panicular program. Revenues that are not 
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which 
is considered to be an independent fiscal and accounting entity. The operations of each 
fund are accounted for within separate sets of self-balancing accounts, which comprise 
its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund 
balance:net position. revenues. and expenditures expenses, and transfers. The 
minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial 
requirements. Fund financial statements report detailed information about the Town. 
The various funds of the Town are classified into two categories: governmental and 
proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major funds, each 
displayed in a separate column. 

Major funds are determined as funds whose revenues, expenditures:expenses, 
assets and deferred outflows of resources or liahilities and deferred inflows of 
resources are at least ten percent of the totals for all governmental or enterprise funds 
and at least five percent of the aggregate amount for all gm emmental and enterprise 
funds for the same item or funds designated as major at the discretion of the Town. 
The General Fund is always a major fund. Funds not classified as a major fund are 
aggregated and presented in a single column in the fund financial statements. The 
Town uses the following funds. grouped hy fund type. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

ernmental Funds: 

GO% ernmental Funds are those through which most govenunental functions of 
the Town are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the Town's expendable 
financial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary 
funds) are accounted fim through governmental funds. 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to 
account for all tinancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenues Funds are used to account for the proceeds of government 
grants or other specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures 
for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects of the Town The 
fbIlow mg are the Town's major Special Revenue Funds. 

The Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the proceeds of a one percent (1%) 
saks and use tax that is legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

The 2010 Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the proceeds of a one percent 
(1%) sales and use tax that is legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

The TIF District Fund is used to account for the proceeds of a two percent 
(2%) sales and use tax and a two percent (2%) hotel occupancy tax that is legally 
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

Proprietary Funds - 

Proprietary funds are used to account for the Town's ongoing operations and 
activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector where the intent 
is that the costs of providing goods and services be recovered through user charges. 
The proprietary funds maintained by the Town are enterprise funds. 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are proprietary fluids that are used to report activities for 
which a fee is charged to external users. These funds account for operations ta) that 
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where 
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses. including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general puhlic on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided 
that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, anifor net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. The Town's enterprise funds are the Gas Fund, the 
Water Fund and the Sewer Fund. 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Enterprise fitnds financial statements include a statement of net position. a 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position, and a statement of 
cash flows. The enterprise fund tinancial information is presented under the business-
type activities column. 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The measurement focus determines the accounting and financial reporting 
treatment applied to a fund. The governmental and business-type activities within the 
government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are presented 
using the economic resources measurement focus. The economic resources 
measurement focus meets the accounting objectives of determining net income, net 
position, and cash flows. 

The fUnd financial statements use either the current financial resources 
measurement focus, or the economic resources measurement focus as appropriate. 
Governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus. The 
measurement focus is based upon the receipt and disbursement of current available 
financial resources rather than upon net income. The measurement tocus of the 
proprietary fund types, the flow of economic resources. is based upon determination 
of net income, net position and cash flows. 

The accrual basis of accounting is used throughout the government-wide 
statements, conversely, the financial statements of the governmental fitnds have been 
prepared in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, wherehy 
revenues are recognized when considered both measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to 
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current tiscal period. 
An exception to this is grants collected on a reimbursement basis. Those reimbursable 
grants are recognized as revenue when reimbursable expenditures are incurred. The 
Town considers reimbursement amounts received within one year as available. The 
Town accrues intergovernmental revenue, ad valorem and sales tax revenue, franchise 
fees. charges for services, and investment income hased upon this concept. 
Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liabilities are incurred 
and become payable in the current period. Proceeds of deht are reported as other 
financing sources, and principal and interest on long-term deht are recorded as 
expenditures when paid. 

Interest on invested funds is recognized when earned. Intergovernmental 
revenues that are reimbursement for specific purposes or projects are recognized in the 
penod in which the expenditures are recorded. All other revenue items are considered 
to be measurahle and available only when cash is received hy the Town. Transfers 
between gm ernmental funds are recorded when the related liability is incurred. These 
transfers do not represent revenues (expenditures) to the Town and are, therefore, 
reported as other financing sources (uses) in the governmental fund financial 
statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Smce the fund levd statements are presented using a different measurement 
focus and hasis of accounting than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation is 
presented on the page following each fund level statement that summarizes the 
adjustments necessary to convert the fund level statements into the government-wide 
presentations. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has heen eliminated 
from the government-wide financial statements. 

The financial statements of the enterprise funds have been prepared in 
accordance with the accrual basis of accounting Accordinely, revenues are recorded 
when earned, and expenses and related hahilities are recorded when incurred. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities. I)eferrea Inflows and Equity 

Cash and interest-beariini deposits 

For purposes of the statement of net position, cash and interest-hearing 
deposits include all demand accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits of 
the Town. Under state law, the Town may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the 
union, or the laws of the United States of America. The Town may invest in certificates 
and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana laws and national banks 
having principal offices in Louisiana. 

In addition. local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in the 
Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a nonprofit corporation formed by the 
State Treasurer and organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates 
a local government investment pool. Investments are stated at fair value. 

For the purpose of the proprietary funds statement of cash flows, "cash and 
cash equivalents" include all demand and savings accounts and certificates of deposit 
with an original maturity of three months or less. 

Interfund receivables and payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between 
individual funds that may result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to 
goods and services type transactions are classified as "due to and from other funds." 
Short-term interfund loans are reported as "interfund receivables and payables." Long-
term interfund loans are reported as "advances to and from other funds." Interfimd 
receivables and payables, advances to and from other funds, as well as due to and from 
other funds are eliminated in the statement of net position. 

Receivables 

In the government-wide statements. receivables consist of all revenues earned 
at year-end and not yet received. Major receivable halances for the governmental 
activities include sales and use taxes, ad 1, alorem taxes. and amounts due from other 
governmental units. Business-type activities report customer utility service 
receivahles as the major receivahles Uncollectihle amounts due for customer utility 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

receivables are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance ftir 
uncollectible accounts at the time information becomes availahle which would indicate 
the uncollectibility of the particular receivable. The allowance for uncollectible 
accounts at June 30, 2023 was $82,074. Unhilled utility service receivables resulting 
from utility services rendered between the date of meter reading and billing and the 
end of the month totaled $20,804 at year end. 

Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods beyond 
June 30, 2023, are recorded as prepaid items 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets. which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastnicture 
assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns 
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical 
cost or estimated cost if historical is not available. Donated assets are recorded as 
capital assets at their acquisition value at the date of donation. The Town maintains a 
threshold le% el of $1,500 or more for capitahzinL,  capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Prior to July 1, 2001, 
governmental funds' infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets have been 
valued at estimated historical cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated 
expense in the statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the 
statement of net position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful 
lives using the straight-line niethod of depreciation. The range of estimated usefttl 
lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 20-40 years 
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years 
Vehicles 5-15 years 

Water system 20-50 years 
Sewerage system 20-50 years 
Meters 10-20 years 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in goi, ernmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund 
upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for 
in the same manner as in the government-wide statements. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary 
funds that are legally restricted as to their use. The restricted assets are related to the 
utility meter deposits and revenue bond accounts. 

Lon-term deht 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are 
used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they 
are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type 
resources is reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term 
debt consists primarily of a revenue bonds and notes payable. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 
financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other tinancing sources and 
payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for 
proprietary fund long-term debt is tlie same in the fund financial statements as it is in 
the government-wide statements. 

Compensated Absences 

The Town's policy is that employees earn and must use their vacation leave as 
of the end of each calendar year. Unused sick leave can be earned forward to the next 
calendar year. Upon termination, unused sick leave up to 90 days is paid to the 
employee at the employee's current rate of pay. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period and so will not he recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expenseiexpenditure) until then At June 30, 2023, the Town had no 
items that qualify for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This represents an acquisition of 
net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow 
of resources (revenue) until that time. At June 30. 2023. the Town had no items that 
qualify for reporting in this category. 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and 
displayed in three components: 

a. Net mvestment in capital assets consists of capital assets, includmg 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds. mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowines that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. 

h. Restricted net position consists of net position with constraints placed 
on the use either by external groups, such as creditors. grantors, and 
contributors, laws or regulations of other governments: or law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. It is the Town's 
policy to use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net 
position when both restricted and unrestncted net position are 
available for an expense which has heen incurred. At June 30, 2023, 
the Town reported $1,959,772 of restricted net position, of which 
$1,878,305 was restricted by enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position consists of all other assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities and deferred intlows of resources that do not 
meet the definition of "restncted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

In the fund financial statements, governmental flind equity is classified as fund 
balance. Fund balances tbr governmental fluids are reported in classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based prirnarily upon the extent to which the Town is hound to 
honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be 
spent. The categories and their purposes are: 

a. Nonspendable includes fund halance amounts that cannot he spent either 
because they are not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual 
constraints requiring they remain intact. The Town's nonspedable fund 
halance includes prepaid items 

h Restricted includes fund balance amotmts that are constrained for specific 
purposes which are externally imposed by providers. such as creditors, 
erantors, contributors or amounts constrained due to constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

c. Committed includes fund balance amounts that can be used only for 
specific purposes that are internally imposed by the Town through formal 
legislative action of the Board of Aldemien and does not lapse at year end. 
A committed fund balance constraint can only be established, modified or 
rescinded by passage of an Ordinance (Law) by the Board of Aldermen. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

d. Assigned includes fund balance amounts that are constrained by the 
Town's intent to be used for specific purposes, that are neither restricted 
nor committed. The assignment of fund balance is authorized by a 
directive from the Mayor and approval of a Resolution hy the Board of 
Aldermen. 

e Unassigned includes fund balance amounts which have not been classified 
within the above-mentioned categories. 

It is the Town's policy to use restricted amounts first when both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available unless prohilaited by legal or contractual 
provisions. Additionally, the Town uses conunitted, assigned, and lastly unassigned 
amounts of fund balance in that order when expenditures are made. 

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide 
statements. 

E. Revenues, Expenditures. ancl Expen,;es 

Revenues 

The Town considers revenue to be susceptible to accrual in the governmental 
funds as it becomes measurable and available, as defined under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. The Town generally defines the availability period for revenue 
recognition as received within sixty (60) days of year-end. The Town's major revenue 
sources that meet this a‘ ailability criterion are intergovernmental revenues. franchise 
fees, tax revenue, and charges for services. 

There are three classifications of programmatic revenues for the Town, grant 
and contributions revenue (operating and capital) and charges for services. Grant 
revenues are revenues from federal, state, and private grants. These revenues are 
recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met and are reported as 
intergovernmental revenues. Program revenues are derived directly from the program 
itself or from parties outside the Town's taxpayers or citizenry. as a whole. Program 
revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the Town's general 
revenues. The primary sources of program re‘enue are fees, fines, and charges paid 
by recipients of goods or services, grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular prograrn and earned 
income in connection with the operation of the Town's utility system. 

Interest income is recorded as earned in the fund holding the interest-bearing 
asset. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

In thr proprietary funds, operating re‘ emirs are those revenues produced as a 
result of providing services and producing and delivering goods and. or services. 
Nonoperating revenues are funds primarily provided by investing activities, such as 
financial institution interest income, gains on disposal of assets and insurance 
recoveries on property loss. Operating expenses are those expenses related to the 
production of revenue. Nonoperating expenses are those expenses not directly related 
to the production of revenue and include items such as interest expense and losses on 
disposal of assets. 

Expenditures'Expenses 

In the government-wide tinancial ;tatements, expenses are classified by 
ftinction for both governmental and business-type activities. In the fund financial 
statements. expenditures are classified as follows: 

Ciovernmental Funds - By Character 
Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fund financial statements. governmental funds report expenditures of 
fmancial resources. Propnetary funds report expenses relating to use of economic 
resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocations of resources brtwern funds of the reporting entity are 
classified as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of activities, all 
interfund transfers between indn idual governmental funds hal, e been eliminated. 

F. Revenue Restnetions 

The Town has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from 
state or local requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include: 

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Ilse 

Sales tax See Note 3 

The Town uses unrestricted resources only when restricted resources are Wily 
depleted. 

G. Capitalization of Interest Expense 

It is the policy of the Town of Grand Coteau to capitalize material amounts of 
interest resulting froni borrowings in the course of the construction of capital assets. 
At June 30, 2023 there were no borrowings for assets under construction and no 
capitalized interest rxprnse recorded. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

H. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
manaeement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting 
penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(2) Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable hen on property as of January I of each year. Taxes 
are levied hy the Town in November and are actuallv billed to taxpayers in December. Billed taxes 
become delinquent on January I of the following year. The Town bills and collects its own property 
taxes usine the assessed values determined by the Tax Assessor of St. Landry Parish. Town property 
tax revenues are budgeted in the year billed. For the year ended June 30, 2023, taxes of 19.95 mills 
were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling $6,959,400 and were dedicated as follows. 

General purposes 
Fire protection 

-1.95 mills 
15.00 mills   

 19.95 mills 
   

Total taxes levied were 5127.959. Taxes reeeixable at June 30. 2023 were $7.048. 

(3) Dethcation of Sales Tax Proceeds 

Proceeds of a 1 percent sales and use tax (accounted for in the Sales Tax Fund - a special 
revenue fund) levied by the Town of Grand Coteau (2023 collections $220,151) are dedicated to the 
following purposes. 

Constructing and purchasing tire department stations and equipment: 
constructing and purchasing police department stations and equipment, opening, 
constructing, paving, resurfacing and improving streets, sidewalks, and bridges: 
constructing and improving drains. drainage canals and subsurface drainage, 
constructing, acquiring or improving anv work of public permanent improvements; and 
purchasing and acquiring all equipment and fUrnishings for the public works, 
builduigs. improvements and facilities of the Town of Grand Coteau, title to which 
shall be in the public. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Proceeds of a 1 percent sales and use tax (accounted for in the 2010 Sales Tax Fund — a special 
revenue fund) levied hy the Town of Grand Coteau (2023 collections 5220,151) are dedicated for any 
lawful corporate purpose of the Town. 

Proceed, of a 2 percent sales and use tax and 2 percent hotel occupancy tax (accounted for in 
the TIF District Fund - a special revenue fund) levied by the Town of Grand Coteau (2023 collections 
$224,426) are dedicated for specific purposes. These taxes are deposited into a special trust fluid named 
the "Grand Coteau Economic Development District No. 1 District Trust Fune the purpose of which is 
to fund economic development projects selected by the Grand Coteau Economic Development District 
No. 1. 

(4) Cash and Interest-Bearing Deposits 

Under state law. the Town may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United States. 
The Town may invest in cenificates and time deposits of the state banks organized under Louisiana law 
and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 2023, the Town had cash and 
interest-bearing deposits (book balances) totaling $3,701,257 as follows: 

Demand deposits $ 3,006.034 
Money market accounts 616.629 
Time deposits 78.594 

Total S 3.701.257 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, the Town's deposits may not be recovered, or the Town will not be able to recover 
the collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. These deposits are stated at cost, 
which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits, (or the resulting bank halances) must be 
secured by federal deposit insurance or similar federal security or the pledge of securities owned by the 
fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must 
at all times equal the amount on deposit with the tiscal agent bank. These securities are held in the 
name of the pledging fiscal agent bank by a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to 
both parties. The following is a summary of deposit balances (bank balances) at June 30, 2023, and the 
related federal insurance and pledged securities: 

Bank balances $3.658.416 

Federal deposit insurance $ 500.000 

Pledged securities 3,158.416 

Total $3,658,416 

Deposits in the amount of $3.158,416 were exposed to custodial credit risk. These deposits are 
uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution's trust department or aeent, 
but not in the Town's name. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(5) In% estments 

The Town participates m Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). LAMP is administered 
by LAMP, Inc., a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only Ioca1 
governmental entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool 
of assets. The pnmary objective of LANIP is to provide a safe ern ironment for the placement of public 
funds in short-term, high-quality investments The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other 
obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to in‘ est in accordance with LA - 
R.S. 33.2955. 

Accounting standards require disclosure of credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of 
credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all puhlic entity investments. 

LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with 
accounting standards. The following facts are relevant for investments pools. 

• Credit risk: LAMP has a fimd rating of AAAm issued by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by 
shares of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categonzed 
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. 
The public entity's imestment is with the pool, not thr securities that make up the pool; 
therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk. LAMP's pooled investments are excluded from the 5 
percent disclosure requirement. 

• Interest rate risk. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk 
disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP 
assets is restricted to not more than 90 days and consists of no securities with a maturity 
in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. Government floatingivariable rate 
investments. 

• Foreign currency risk. Not applicable. 

The investment in LAMP totaling $52,858 is stated at fair value. The fair value is determined 
on a weekly basis hy LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same 
as the net asset value of the pool shares. LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state 
treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 
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Accounts., net 
Ad valorem taxes 

Totals 

s - 
7,048 

S 7.0-18 

$ 80,065 $ 80,065 
7,048 

S 80.065 S 87.113 

TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(6) Restricted Assets - Propnetary Fund Type 

Restricted assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2023: 

Customer deposits $ 99,049 
Revenue bond reserve and sinking funds 81,927 

Total $ 180,97(i 

ts7) Receivahles 

Receivables c()nsisted of the followinc≥ at June 30, 2023. 

Ciovernmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

(8) I)ue tiom Other Governmental Units 

The amount due from other governmental units consisted of the following at June 30, 2023: 

Governmental acti‘ ities: 
State of Louisiana - video poker revenue $143,882 

(9) Accounts and Other Payables 

The accounts and other payables consisted of the following at June 30, 2023: 

Governmental Business_type 

Activities Activities Total 

Accounts payable $ 64,559 $ 40.571 $105,130 

Accrued liabilities 2,369 2,369 

Totals $ 66.928 $ 40.571 $ 107,499 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(10) Capital Assets  

Capital asset activity for thr year ended June 30. 2023 was as follows: 

 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions 

Ending 
Balance 

Ciovernmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    

Land $ 143,375 $ $ $ 143,375 

Other capital assets: 

    

Buildings and improvements 372,926 ), _(00 

 

375,726 
Infrastructure 1,234,583 

  

1234,583 
Equipment 668,701 69,557 

 

738,258 

Totals 1,276.110 72,357 

 

2.348,567 

Less accumulated depreciation 

    

Buildings and improvements 176,679 14,105 

 

190,784 
Infrastructure 856.967 43,827 

 

900,794 
Equipment 513,770 26.108 

 

539,878 

Total accumulated depreciation 1,547,416 84.040 

 

1,631,456 

Governmental activities, 
capital assets, net S >: -.i. '.169 S O1,683) $ - $ 860,486  

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

 

General go% ernment $ 13,741 
Police 1(1,466 
Fire 13,278 
Highways and streets 44,012 
Parks and recreation .2,543 

Total depreciation expense S 84,04(1 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

 

Begimiing 

Balance Additions I)eletions 

Ending 

Balance 

Business-tvpe activines: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    

Land - water systein $ 24000 $ - $ - $ 24,000 
Construction in Progress 676,591 78.097 754,688 

 

Totals 700,591 78,097 754.688 24,000 

Other capital assets: 

    

Gas system and equipinent 474,225 

  

474,225 
Water system and equipment 2,198.225 754.689 

 

2.952,914 
Sewer plant and equipment 3,868,034 6.533 

 

3.874,567 

Totals 6,540,484 761.222 

 

7.301,706 

Less accumulated depreciation 

    

Gas system and equipment 380,000 17,936 

 

397,936 
Water system and equipment 1,411.14(1 38.595 

 

1.449,735 
Sewer plant and equipment 1,735,153 99.588 

 

2.834,841 

Total accumulated depreciation 4,526,393 156.119 

 

4.682.5 1 2 

Business-type activities. 
capital assets, net 5 2,714.(i82 $683,200 $ 754,688 $2.643,194 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows. 

Gas 
Water 
Sewer 

Total depreciation expense 

$ 17,936 

38,595 
99,588 

$156,119    

(11) Cliam2cs in Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions of the Town for the year ended 
June 30, 2023: 

 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Due Within 

One Year 
Long-term debt• 

     

Direct placement - 

Revenue bonds $ 176,397 $ $ 20,684 S 155,713 23.261 

Direct bon-Owings - 
Notes payable 75,278 

 

23,335 51,943 15,534 

 

$ 251,675 $ $ 44,019 207,656 $ 38,795 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2023 consisted of the followiml: 

Go‘ernmental activities - 

Notes payable. 

$39,541 equipment loan dated September 1. 2021, interest at 4.30 percent 

Business-type activities - 

Revemie bonds: 

S 32,284 

 

$225,000 Sewer Revenue Bond, due in monthly installments of $1.033 through 
August 31. 2034; interest at 4.5 percent $ 109.713 

$150,000 Limited Tax Bonds, Senes 2014, due in annual installments of $4,000 - 
$16,000 through March 1, 2026; interest at 3.0 percent 46,000 

Notes payable. 

$26,254 auto loan dated August 7, 2019: interest at 5.17 percent 2.401 

$28,677 auto loan dated October 27, 2021: interest at 4.98 percent 17.258 

Total bonds payable applicable to business-type activities 175.372 

Aiuival debt service requirements of all outstanding debt are as follows: 

 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

 

Year ending 
June 30. 

Principal 
payments 

Interest 
payments 

Principal 
payrnents 

Interest 
payments 

Principal 
payments 

Interest 
payments 

2024 5 7,569 $ 1,388 $ 30.605 S 7.032 $ 38,174 $ 8,420 
1 025 

 

7,895 1,063 28.832 5.928 36,727 6,991 

2026 

 

8,234 723 30,211 4,820 38,445 5,543 
2027 

 

8,586 369 8,742 3,651 17,328 4,020 
2028 

   

50,117 11,848 50,117 11,848 
2029 - 2033 

   

26,865 1,385 26,865 1,385 

Total 5 32,284 $ 3,543 $ 175.372 S 34.664 5207,656 $ 38,207 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(12) Compensation of Town Officials 

A detail of compensation paid to thr Mayor and Board of Aldermen for the year ended June 
30, 1013 follows: 

Mayor Patrick Richard S 10.500 

Aldermen: 

 

James Richard 4,500 

Brad Randell 4,500 

Annette Charles 4,500 

Eh Wheeler 4,500 

Devon Thomas 9,600 

Ted Miller 5,100 

Sandra Smith 5,100 

Brandon Bobb 5,100 

Gretchen Coco 5.100 

 

48,000 

 

$ 64.500 

(13) Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Nlavor 

A detail of compensation, benefits, and other payments made to Mayor Patrick Richard tor the 
year ended June 30. 2023 follows: 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 16,500 
Reimbursements 88 

$ 16,588 

(14) (I)n-Behalf Payment of Salaries 

The State of Louisiana paid the Town's police officers $33.857 of supplemental pay during the 
year ended June 30. 2023. Such payments are recorded as intergovernmental revenues and public safety 
expenditures in the government-wide and General Fund financial statements 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

i151 Litivation and (Ilaims 

At June 30, 2023, the Town was involved in certain lawsuits arisine from the normal course of 
operations, which have been referred to its insurance provider. In the opinion of the Town's legal 
counsel. the Town has no liability in excess of insurance coverage. 

(16) Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets: errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters. The Town maintains 
commercial insurance coverage for each of those risks of loss. Management believes coverage is 
sufficient to preclude any signiticant uninsured losses to the Town. There have been no significant 
reductions in the insurance during the year. nor have settlements exceeded coverage for the past three 
years. 

(17) Imerfund Receivables, Payables 

A. A summary of mterfund receivahles and payables at June 30, 

Major eovernmental funds. 

2023 follows. 

Interfund 
Receivables 

Interfund 
Payables 

  

General Fund $ 99.096 $ 123,437 

Sales Tax Fund 1,921 

 

2010 Sales Tax Fund 

 

20,514 

Propnetary funds: 

  

Gas Fund 169,082 

 

Water Fund 

 

109,6(11 

Sewer Fund 10,308 26,795 

Total $ 280,407 $ 280,407 

The amounts of interfnnd receivables and payables listed above are for short-term loans. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

B. Transfers consisted of the following at June 30. 2013: 

Tramders 
In 

Transfers 
Out 

Major governmental funds: 

  

General Fund $ 459,926 S - 
Sales Tax Fund 

 

B0,000 
2010 Sales Tax Fund 

 

B0,000 

Propnetary Fund. 

  

Gas Fund 20,300 

 

Water Fund 95,823 

 

Sewer Fund 

 

316,049 

Total $ 576,049 $ 576.049 

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or hudget requires to collect 
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use unrestricted revenues 
collected in the different funds to finance vanous programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with budgetary authorizations. 

37 



REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

38 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedulc 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

Budget 

 

Actual 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

  

Final 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 200,479 $ 224,778 S 226,644 $ 1,866 
Licenses and permits 70,345 48,599 75,569 26,970 
Intergovernmental 891,748 615,732 694,765 69,033 
Fines and forfeits 303,320 254,825 312,833 58,008 
Miscellaneous 20,205 7,910 24.139 16,219 

Total revenues 1.486,007 1,161.854 1,333.950 172,006 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 

    

General government 341,949 397,018 392,384 4,634 
Puhlic safety - police 673,256 656,234 664,827 (8,593) 
Puhlic safety - fire 234,516 155,511 178,263 (22,752) 

Highways and streets 238,667 196,882 179,745 17,137 
Parks and recreation 

 

10,741 7,373 3,368 
Capital outlay 593,608 /43,733 7/,356 171,377 
Debt service 11,828 8,958 8,958 

 

Total expenditures 1,093,814 L669,077 1,503,906 165,171 

Deticiency of revenues over 

expenditures ((i07,727) (507,2.23) (169,956) 337,267 

Other fmancing sources tuses): 

    

Proceed, from capital lease 

 

117,142 

 

(117,142) 
Transfers in 290,000 290,000 459,926 169,926 
Transfers out 15,800) t 15,800) 

 

15,800 

Total other fmancing 
sources (uses) 174,100 391,34? 459,926 68.584 

Net change in fund balance (333,527) (115,881) 289,970 405,851 

Fund halance. beginning 1,017,936 1.017,936 1,017,936 

 

Fund balance, ending S 684,-109 S 901,055 S 1,307,6 S 405,851 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 



TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 
Sales Tax Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

Buduct 
Actual 

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative) 

 

Oriina1 Final 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 191.000 $ 201,000 $ 220,151 19,151 

Miscellaneous - interest 

 

3 

  

Total revenues 191.000 201,003 ) "0,156 19,153 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 

General government: 15.178 17,0'7 16,109 918 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 175.722 133,976 204,047 20,071 

Other financing uses: 

    

Transfers out 030,1100) (130.000) (130.01(► ) 

 

Net change in fund balance 45.77 53,976 74,047 20,071 

Fund balance, beginning 351.827 351,8'7 351,827 

 

Fund balance, ending S 397,549 405.803 S S -10.071 

The accoinpanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 
2010 Sales Tax Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative) 

 

y  Original FinA 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 191,000 201.000 $ 220,151 S 19,151 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 

General government: 16,247 1 7.996 17,040 956 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 174.753 183.004 203,111 20,107 

Other financing uses: 

    

Transfers out (130.000) (130.000) (130.000) 

 

Net change in fund balance 44.753 53.004 73,111 20,107 

Fund balance, beginning 

 

298.71/ 1..)8 711 

 

Fund balance. ending S 343.475 S 351.7/6 371,833 $ 20,107 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 
TIF District Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

Budfiet 

 

Variance - 
Positive 

(Negative) 

 

Original Final Actual 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes S 199,000 $ 211,000 $ 224,426 $ 13,426 

Miscellaneous - interest 1 -, . , 1 

Total revenues 199,001 211,002 224.429 13,427 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 

General overnment: 32.061 32,300 

 

2.548 

Net change in fund balance 166,940 178,70' 194.077 15,975 

Fund balance. beginning 954.100 954,100 954, l 00 

 

Fund balance, ending S 1.121,040 S1.132,802 S 1,148.777 S 15,975 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF CiRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Intbrmation 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the tinancial statements: 

1. Pnor to June 15. the Town Clerk submits to the Mayor and Board of 
Aldernien a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the 
following January 1. 

A summary of the proposed budget is published. and the public notified 
that the proposed hudget is available for public inspection At the same 
time, a public hearing is called. 

3 A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after 
publication of the call for the hearing. 

4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action 
necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted 
through passage of an ordinance pric)r to the commencement of the fiscal 
year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one 
department, program or function to another or involving increases in 
expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated 
require the approval of the Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each tiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as 
originally adopted or as amended hy the Board of Aldermen. 
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Justice System Funding Schedule - CollectingiDisbursing Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

FiNt Six Month 
Period Ended 
1231.2022 

Second Six Month 
Period Ended 

6.30.2023 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) 

Add: Collections 
Criminal Court Costs/Fees 
Criminal Fines - Other 

Subtotal Collections 

$ - $ - 

550 

91,216 

538 
219.013 

91,766 219.551 

Less. Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits• 
Louisiana Traumatic Head and Spinal Cord Injury Tnist 

  

Fund, Criminal Fines - Other 1,995 3.135 

Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement Crime Victims 
Reparation Fund. Criminal Fines - Other 782 1,268 

Louisiana Supreme Court - Louisiana Judicial College. 
Criminal Fines - Other 700 314 

Treasurer. State of Louisiana - Trail Court Case Mana gement 
Information System. Criminal Fines - Other 39N 4 

Acadiana Criminalistics Laboratory Commission. 
Criminal Fines - Other 90 140 

St. Landry Parish Criine Stoppers. Criminal Fines - Other 798 1 .294 

Less• Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 

  

Criminal Fines - Other 87,503 212,643 

Subtotal Dishursements/Retainage 91,766 219,551 

Total: Ending Balance of Ainounts Collected but 
not Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 
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TOWN OF GRAND COTEAU. LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Insurance in Ft irce 

(Unaudited) 
June 30, 2023 

     

Effective Rite\ 
Insurer Type of Coverage Limits of Coverage From fu 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Workmen's Compensation Statutory Monthly Monthly 

Western Surety Bond (CNA) Position Bond $246.001) 9:15,2022 9:15,2023 

 

Blanket Bond $5,000 10'1'2022 10'1'2023 

Dupre Carrier Godchaux Agency Proper ty.Bu ildi ng, 

Town Hall 

$10,000 deductihle 
$529.947 

3.14'2023 3.14 '2024 

 

Utihty Shed S20.086 

  

Police Building $534.125 

  

Fire Station $537.162 

  

Equipment Garage S52,316 

  

Recreation $105.808 

  

Gas Rectifiers S29,420 

  

Water and Sewer Systern $306.000 

  

Water Tower 5408.000 

  

Water Treatrnent Plant $385.132 

  

Chlorinator Equipment Shed S91,800 

  

Tradewinds Generator $160.000 

  

Lilt Stations $51;9,001 

 

Louisiana Risk Managetnent General Liability $5t MN I 5. 1'2023 5 '1'2024 

 

Errors and Omissions S1.000 each claimant 

  

Law Enforcement Officer 51.000 deductible 

  

Automobile Liability $500.000 

  

Uninsured Motorist $100.000 

 

Rod Prejean Associates Vehicles Physical Damage $107.500 I 8 -WI I 8 2024 

 

Each occurrence $1.500,000 
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" A Professional Accounting Corporation INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Patrick Richard, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Grand Coteau, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Grand Coteau, Louisiana (the Town), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Town's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit findings 
and management's corrective action plan, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider 
to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
Town's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider 
the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit findings and 
management's corrective action plan as items 2023-001, 2023-004, and 2023-005 to be material weaknesses. 



A significant doliciency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention hy those charged with governance. 
We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit findings 
and management's corrective action plan as items 2023-002, 2023-003, and 2023-006 to be significant 
deficiencies. 

Report ou Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Amdards and 
which are described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit findings and mannement's 
corrective action plan as items 2023-007, 2023-008, and 2023-009. 

Town of Grand Coteau, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town's 
response to the findings identified in our audit and descnbed in the accompanying schedule of current and prior 
year audit findings and management's corrective action plan The Town's response was not subjected to the 
other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Town's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose Although the intended use of this report may be limited, under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Kolder, Sloven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Lafayette. Louisiana 
December 20, 2023 
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TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Part I. Current Year Findings and Management's Correctix e Action Plan 

A. Internal Control Over Financial Reportim2 

2023-001 Inadequate Semgation of Accountine. Functions 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: Unknown 

CONDITION: The Town did not have adequate segregation of functions 
within thr accounting system. 

CRITERIA. AU-C§315.04, Undewanding the Entity and its Environment 
and assessing the Risks qf Material Misstatement. defines internal control as 
follows: 

"Internal control is a process, effected by those charged with 
governance. management, and other personnel, desigied to 
provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives with regard to rehahility of financial reporting, 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and coinpliance 
with applicable laws and regulations.-

 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the fact that the Town does not have a 
sufficient number of employees performing administrative and financial 
duties so as to provide adequate segegation of accounting and financial 
duties. 

EFFECT: Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financial functions 
increases the risk that errors and;or irreeularities including fraud andor 
defalcations may occur and not be prevented andor detected. 

REC'OMMENDATION: Management should evaluate the cost vs. benefit of 
complete segregation and whenever possible. reassign incompatible duties 
among different employees to ensure that a single employee does not have 
control of more than one of the following responsibilities: (1) authorization, 
(2) custody; (3) record keeping: and (4) reconciliation 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: The Town has 
determined that it is not cost effective to achieve complete segregation of 
duties within the accounting department. 
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TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

'0'3-002 Controls over Personnd Files 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: Unknown 

CONDITION: The Town did not have proper controls over the maintenance 
of personnd files. 

CRITERIA. AU-C§315.04, Understanding the Entity and its Environment 
and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement, detines internal control as 
follows: 

"Internal control is a process, effected by those charged with 
governance. management, and other personnel, desigied to 
provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and coinpliance 
with applicable laws and regulations.-

 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the failure to maintain personnel files. 

EFFECT: Failure to maintain personnel files could result in einployees being 
paid at a rate not approved by the Board of Aldermen and deductions applied 
at incorrect amounts 

RECOMMENDATION: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that 
personnel tiles are current and complete for all employees 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: The Town will 
implement procedures to ensure personnel files are maintained and kept 
current for all employees. 

1023-(1113 Maintenance of Employee Leave Records 

Fiscal year findine initially occurred: 2021 

CONDITION: The Town did not have proper controls over the maintenance 
of employee leave records. 

CRITERIA: AU-Q315.041, Understanding the £ntiry and its £ni•iroriment 
and Assessing the Risks qf Material Misstatement, detines internal control as 
follows: 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

"Internal control is a process, effected by those charged with 
governance, management, and other personnel, designed to 
provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives with regard to rehahility of financial reporting, 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations." 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the failure to maintain a systern to 
track the accrual and use of employee vacation and sick leave. 

EFFECT: Failure to maintain employee leave records could result in 
employees being paid for leave time in excess of amounts of available leave 
time. 

RECOMMENDATION: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that 
leave records are current and complete for all employees. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN. The Town will 
implement procedures to ensure leave records are maintained and kept 
current tor all employees. 

2023-0D4 Written Policies and Procedures 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2023 

CONDITION: The Town does not have written policies and procedures for 
budgeting, receipts collections, payroll processing, contracting, use of credit 
cards, travel and expense reimbursements, ethics, debt sen ice, capital asset 
manaeement, and the safeguarding of traffic tickets. 

CRITERIA: Forrnal written policies and procedures are necessary as a clear 
understanding of what should he done, how it should be done, who should do 
it, and when it should be done and ensure the procedures followed meet 
manaeement's expectations. Written procedures aid in the continuity of 
operations and for cross-trammL,  staff. 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the fact that the Town has not 
properly documented its policies and procedures. 

EFFECT: Failure to adopt formal written policies and procedures increases 
the risk that improper use of Town assets or violations of policy may occur 
and not be identified. 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should adopt formal written policies 
and procedures for hudgeting, receipts:collections, payroll processing, 
contracting. use of credit cards, travel and expense reimbursements, ethics, 
debt service, capital asset management, and the safe2uarding of traffic 
tickets. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: Management will 
review policies and procedures and will properly document procedures in 
place for budgeting, receipts.collections, payroll processin2, contracting, use 
of credit cards, travel and expense reimbursements. ethics, debt service, 
capital asset management, and the safeguarding of traffic tickets. 

20/3-005 Reconciliation of Utility Account,_: Receivable. Re\ enue 

Fiscal year findin2 initially occurred: 2021 

CONDITION: The utility accounts receivable balance and utility service 
revenue in the general ledger is not reconciled monthly with the detailed 
accounts receivable customer listing and monthly billing register. 

CRITERIA: Not reconciling the detailed accounts receivahle customer 
listing and service re‘enue hilling registers to the balance in the general 
ledger on a rnonthly basis is a fraud nsk factor. 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the result of a failure to design or 
implement policies and procedures to achieve adequate internal control. 

EFFECT: Errors or irregularities could be made in the recording of deposits, 
billings. payments, adjustments, or oided receipts without bemg detected in 
a timelv manner. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Town implement 
procedures to ensure the accounts receivable balance and service revenue in 
the general ledger is reconciled monthlv with the detailed accounts 
receivable customer listin2 and monthly hilling registers. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTIC)N PLAN. The Town will 
establish policies and procedures to ensure the utility accounts receivable 
balance and service revenue in the general ledger is reconciled monthly with 
the detailed accounts receivable customer listin2 and monthly billing 
registers. 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

2023-006 Utilitv Bill Collections 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2021 

CONDITION: During a test of utility accounts of the Town's customers, it 
was noted that some accounts are not bring paid in full or timely, and the 
customers, including employees and Town officials, continue to receive 
semce m1, iolation of the Town's utility cut-off policy and are not charged a 
late fee. 

CRITERIA: The utility cut-off policy requires that the Town terminate 
services to customers when an account becomes 30 days delinquent. The 
Town's policy also requires that a late fee be charged if payrnent is not 
received by the 15th  of the month. 

CAUSE: The Town has. not properly followed its. written policies and 
procedures regarding past due accounts and proper cut-off procedures to 
disconnect services relating to nonpayment by customers. 

EFFECT: Failure to follow written policies and procedures increases the risk 
of not having continuity of operation, and the risk of long outstanding 
collections of utilities. 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should consistently comply with its 
written policies and procedures in the future and cut-off utility services of 
customers, including employees and Town officials, who do not pay within 
the time limited stated in the policy. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN. The Town will 
adhere to its cut-off policy. 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

B. Compliance 

2023-007 Failure to Publish Minutes 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2021 

CONDITION. The Town did not publish minutes for all of its public 
meetings within a reasonable period of time. 

CRITERIA: LA R.S. 42:20 states that all public bodies shall keep written 
minutes of all open meetings. It further states that the minutes shall be public 
records and shall be available within a reasonable period of time after the 
meeting and pubhshed in the public body's official journal. LA R.S. 43:144 
requires the official proceedings to be published within 20 days from the date 
of the meeting. In addition. LA R.S. 42:20B states that if the public body has 
a website, the minutes need to he posted to the website within 10 days after 
publication in the official journal and should remain there for at least three 
months after being posted online. 

CAUSE: The Town did not publish minutes in the official journal within the 
required time frame but rather posted a copy of the minutes on the Town Hall 
door and on the local Post Office bulletin board. 

EFFECT: Members of the public were not pro‘ ided with inthrmation 
regarding the Town's activities in the manner prescnbed by law. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should comply with LA R.S. 42.20B 
and 43:144 and publish all minutes in accordance with state law. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN• The Town will 
irnplement policies and procedures to ensure that minutes of all open 
meetings will be made available as public record and published in the official 
journal timely. 

2023-008 Purchase of Gift Cards 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2023 

CONDITION. In December 2022 the Town purchased and distributed $50 
gift cards to all employees as a Christrnas Gift card.s purchased totaled 
$1,000. 
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TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

CRITERIA. Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states that 
except as otherwise provided by this constitution, the funds, credit, property, 
or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned. pledged. or donated to or for anv person, association, or corporation, 
public or private. The Louisiana Supreme Court has held that this 
constitutional provision is violated when public funds or property are 
gratuitously alienated and when the state or political suhdivision of the state 
seeks to give up something of value when it is under no obligation to do so. 
In order for an expenditure of public funds to he permissible under Article 7, 
Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, the public entity must have the 
legal authority to make the expenditure and must show. (i) a public purpose 
of the expenditure or transfer that comports with the governmental purpose 
for which the public entity has legal authority to pursue; (ii) that the 
expenditure or transfer. taken as a whole, does not appear to be gratuitous; 
and ( iii) that the public entity has the demonstrable, objective, and reasonable 
expectation of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the 
expenditure or transfer of public funds. 

CAUSE: The Town did not properly evaluate the allowability of purchasing 
gift cards tor employees. 

EFFECT: Based upon the documentation provided, the Town cannot 
demonstrate that the purchase of gift card; for employees was not gratuitous 
and increases the risk that the Town will be in violation of state law. 

REC'OMMENDATION: The Town should implement policies and 
procedures to ensure that all approved expenditures are not prohibited by 
state law. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN• The Town will 
implement policies to ensure that all appro‘ed expenditures are not 
prohibited by state law. 

'013-009 Payment of Undocumcnted Leave Time 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2023 

CONDITION: The Town's leave policy allows employees to cany forward 
up to 90 days of unused sick leave. Any accumulated sick leave up to the 
maximum of 90 days is paid to an employee at termination. In January 2023 
the Town paid the former Police C'hief for 80 days of unused sick leave for a 
total payment of S14.828.80 with no documentation of the police chief s 
accrual and usage of leave during his term of office. 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

CRITERIA. The Town of Grand Coteau was incorporated under the 
provisions of the Lawrason Act Under the Lawrason Act (LA R.S. 33.321-
463 f and claritied in Attorney General Opinion No. 15-0186, an elected chief 
of police may accrue leave under an established municipal policy as any 
other municipal employee. In order to be paid for leave upon separation 
under a policy, the police chiers accrual and usage of leave must be 
documented during their term of oftice. 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the failure to maintain a system to 
track the accnial and use of employee vacation and sick. 

EFFECT: Failure to maintain employee leave records increases the risk that 
employees could be paid for leave time in excess of leme time available. 
Payments made to employees in excess of available leave time could result in 
the Town being in violation of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana 
Constitution. Payrnent of undocumented leave time to the former police 
chief may also result in the Town being in violation of the provisions of the 
Lawrason Act. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should implement policies and 
procedures to ensure compliance with the Town's adopted policy and state 
laws regarding payments to employees for accrued leave time. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN. The Town will 
implement policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Town's 
adopted policy and state laws regarding payments to employees for accrued 
leave time. 

C. Management Letter 

A management letter was issued related to operating losses in the Town's 
Water and Sewer Funds. 
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TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Part II: Prior Year Findimls.  

A. Internal C'ontrol Over Financial Reporting and Compliance  

?01?-01)I Inadequate Se2reflation of Accounting Functions 

CONDITION. The Town did not have adequate segregation of functions 
within the accounting system. 

REC'O144MENDATHJN: Management should evaluate the cost vs. benefit of 
complete segregation and whenever possible. reassign incompatible duties 
among different employees to ensure that a single employee does not have 
control of more than one of the following responsibilities: (1) authorization, 
(2) custody; (3) record keeping; and (4) reconciliation 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2023-001. 

2022-002 Controls over Personnel Files 

CONDITION: The Town did not have proper controls over the maintenance 
of personnel tiles. 

RECOMMENDATION: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that 
personnel tiles are current and complete for all employees. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2023-002. 

2022-0113 Niaintenance of Employee Leave Records 

CONDITION: The Town did not have proper controls over the maintenance 
of employee leave records 

RECOMMENDATION. Procedures should be implemented to ensure that 
lea% e records are current and complete for all employees. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2023-003. 

2022-004 Reconciliation of Bank Accounts 

CONDITION: The Town did not prepare all hank reconciliations for its 
bank accounts for all months during the tiscal year tiinely. 
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TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should prepare written bank 
reconciliations within 30 days of receipt of bank statements by an employee 
who does not have responsibility.authority to (1 ) sign checks; or (2) receive 
and deposit cash; or (3) authorize disbursements. The monthly bank 
reconciliations should be properly completed, dated, and signed by both the 
preparer and reviewer:approver and he maintained on tile for subsequent 
review and audit. 

CURRENT STATUS: Resolved. 

2022-005 Reconciliation of Utility Accounts Receivable 

CONDITION: The utility accounts receivable bahnce in the general ledger 
is not reconciled monthly with the detailed accounts receivable customer 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Town implement 
procedures to ensure the accounts receivable balance in the general ledger is 
reconciled monthly with the detailed accounts receivable customer listing. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2023-005. 

20/ 71-006 Reconciliation of Customer Meter I)eposits 

CONDITION: The Town does not have complete and accurate records for 
customer meter deposits, and the meter deposit bank account balances are not 
reconciled monthly with a detailed listing of customers' meter deposits. 

RECOMNIENDATION: It is recommended that the Town implement 
procedures to ensure that an accurate listing of customer meter deposits is 
maintained and reconciled monthly to the meter deposit bank account and 
deposit liability. 

CURRENT STATUS: Resolved. 

2022-007 Utility Bill Collections 

CONDITION: During a test of utility accounts of the Town's customers. it 
was noted that some accounts are not heing paid in full or timely, and the 
customers, including employees and Town officials, continue to receive 
service in violation of the Town's utility cut-off policy and are not charged a 
late fee. 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should consistently comply with its 
written policies and procedures in the future and cut-off utility services of 
customers, including employees and Town officials, who do not pay within 
the time limited stated in the policy. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2023-006. 

2022-008 Late Payment of Invoices 

CONDITION: During the year, the Town paid several imoices after the due 
date resultine in late fees being assessed. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recornrnended that the Town process and pay 
invoices timely and by the due date. 

CURRENT STATUS.  Resolved. 

20/%009 Failure to Publish Minutes 

CONDITION: The Town did not pubhsh minutes for all of its public 
meetings within a reasonable period of time. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should cornply with LA R.S. 42.20B 
and 43:144 and publish all minutes in accordance with state law. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2023-007. 

2022-010 Records to he Kept -- Minutes 

CONDITION: The Town failed to maintain minutes for all meetings held 
during the fiscal year. Town officials have heen able to pro‘ide agendas for 
two scheduled meetings; however, there are no minutes available, and no 
recording of the meetings could be located. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should comply with LA R.S. 33:421 and 
maintain minutes for all proceedings of the mayor and board of aldermen. 

CURRENT STATUS: Resolved. 



TOWN OF GRAND C'OTEAU, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

'0'2-011 Compensation of Town Officials 

CONDITION: Beginning in July 2021, the Town increased board member 
cornpensation; however, no e‘idence of approval of this action was provided 
in the minutes. Also, the Town failed to fix the compensation of the mayor, 
board of aldermen, clerk, chief of police, and other municipal officers hy 
ordinance as required by LA R.S 33:404.1. Although the Attorney General 
has opined that the budget ordinance, while not the preferred method. mav be 
used to raise the set salary of the elected officials and municipal officers, 
thereby satisfying the requirements of LA RS. 33:404.1, the Town's budget 
ordinance did not address this increase in compensation until the budget was 
amended at the end of the fiscal vear. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should comply with LA R.S 33:404.1 
regarding compensation of municipal officers. 

CURRENT STATUS• Resolved. 
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KOLDER, SLAVEN & COMPANY, LLC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 

The Honorable Patrick Richard, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Grand Coteau, Louisiana 

We have completed our audit of the basic financial statements of the Town of Grand Coteau, 
Louisiana, for the year ended June 30, 2023, and submit the following recommendations for your 
consideration: 

(1) The Water and Sewer Funds experienced operating losses during the current 
year. Failure to make a profit on utility sales could result in the Town not 
having resources to pay current expenses. The Town should consider increasing 
utility rates and/or decreasing expenses in order for the utility system to operate 
on a profitable basis. 

In conclusion, we express our appreciation to you and your staff, particularly to your office staff, 
for the courtesies and assistance rendered to us during the performance of our audit. Should you have 
any questions or need assistance in implementing our recommendations, please feel free to contact us. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
December 20, 2023 

Member of: Member of: 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Alderman of the 
Town of Grand Coteau 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for 
the fiscal period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. The Town of Grand Coteau's management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Town of Grand Coteau has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on 
the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. 
Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its 
purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address 
all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as 
such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their 
purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories, if applicable, to public funds and the entity's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address how vendors are added to the 
vendor list. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 



iv. Receipts/Collections, including recen mg, recording. and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utihty billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

if "rirren policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the flinctions noted above. 

v. PayrolbPersonnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approl, al process for employee( s) 
rate of pay or approval and niaintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policie.s and procedures were obtained and do not address the jinictions noted above. 

vi. Contracting, including (I) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions. (3) legal review, (4) approval process. and (5) monitoring process. 

lfritten policiav and procedures were obtained und do not address the flaw:ions noted aboiv 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowahle expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

Mitten policies and procedin'es vivre obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 

Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements. (4) required 
apprmers of statements. and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g.. determining the reasonableness of 
fuel card purchases). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and dn not address the jinictions noted above. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111 -1121. 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to rnonitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notitied of any changes to the entity's ethics policy 

Written policies and procedinws were obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosureiEMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) deht reserve requirements, and (4) deht service requirements 

ll-rirten policies and procedures were obtained and do not address theflinctions noted above. 

xi. InPrmation Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups. (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that hackups can he restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems. (5) timely application of all mailable system and software 
patches. updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the finctions noted above. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (I) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions. (2) annual employee training. and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the. Innetions noted above. 



2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Ohtain and inspect the boardfmance committee minutes for the tiscal period, as well as the board's 
enahling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

i. Observe that the boardfinance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation. charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions werefound as a result of this procedure. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the gol, ernmental accounting model, observe whether the nunutes 
referenced or included monthly hudget-to-actual cornparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budeet-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget- to-actual. at a 
nunimum, on all special revenue funds 

It was noted that the minutes did not reference or include monthly budget-to-actual comparisons 
on the geneml And, quarterly budget-to-actual. at a minimum, on proprietary funds. and semi-

 

annual budget-to-actual, at a miniminn. on revenueflinds. 

iii. For governmental entities, ohtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fluid had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 

iv. Observe whether the board; finance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding( s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the 
fmdings are considered fully resolved. 

h xcr.s noted that the board.finance committee did not receive written update.s cf the progress 
resolving audit Panto .). according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until 
the findings are considered jidly resolved. 

3) Bank Reconciliation.s 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask managernent to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randornly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one rnonth from the fiscal period. obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that• 

Obtained a listing of entity hank accounts fin- the fiscal period and managements representation that 
the listing is complete. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g.. initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

Obtained and reviewed bunk teconciliations noting that 5 ont githe 5 bank ieconciliutions selected 
hr testing were not prepared within 2 months crf the related statement closing date. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., 
initialed and dated. electronicallv logged); and 

Obtained and reviewed hank ieconciliations noting that 5 out of the 5 hank reconciliations selected 
Pr testing did not include written evidence that a member of monagement or o board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has revietved each bank reconciliation. 
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iii. Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Obtained and revress.ed bank reconciliations noting that firr 3 out of the 5 bank reconciliations 
selected fin- tesung management did not have documentation reflecting that it has researched 
reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing 
date. 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for caskchecks;money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obwined a listing of deposit sites Pr the fiscal period and managements representation that the listing 
is complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites). obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees ahout their job duties) 
at each collection location. and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that. 

i. Employees responsihle for cash collections do not share cash drawers, registers: 

Observed that employees responsible fin cash collections do not share the same cash 
drawersiregisters. 

ii. Each employee responsible fim collecting cash is not responsible for preparing:making bank 
deposits, unless another employeeiofficial is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit, 

Observed that employees responsible firr collecting cash ure also responsible fin-  preiraringimaking 
bank deposits. However. another employee/official reconciles collection documentation to the 
deposit. 

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit: and 

Observed that employees responsible fin-  collecting cush are not revonsible fin• posting cosh 
collection entries to the general ledger. 

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and,or subsidiary 
ledgers, by re% enue source andior agency fund additions, are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee:official verifies the reconciliation. 

Observed that employee.c responsible for reconciling ca.sh collections to the general ledger are not 
responsible Pr collecting cash 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe the hond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
penod. 

Obtained and reviewed u copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash, notmg no exceptions. 
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D. Randomly sdect two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure -#3A t select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Obtain 
supporting documentation for each of the 11) deposits and. 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Observed that .fbr 4 out of the 6 deposits selected fiir testing, receipts were not sequentially pre-
numbered. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports. and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

For 4 out of the h deposits .selectedfin- le.sting, we could not trace sequentially pre-numbered 
receipts, system reports. and other related collection docinnentanon to the deposit slip For 2 out 
of the 6 deposits selected for testing. this attribute could not be determined due to luck of 
documentation. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

For 2 out of the 6 deposits selected jiir testing. we could not trcice the deposit slip tom! to the actual 
deposit per the hank statement. 

iv. Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less 
than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

Observed that 2 out qf the 6 deposits selected/Or testing were not made within one business day of 
receipt at the collection location. For 4 out cf the 6 deposits selected firr testing. this attribute could 
not be determined due to lack of documentation. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Traced the actual deposit per the hank statement to the general ledger, noting no exceptions. 

.9 Aron-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Obtained u listing qf locations rhar pr•ocess payments lbr the fiscal period and managements 
represenfulion that the listing is.  complete. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, ohtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about 
their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order or making the purchase; 

Obserwd that at least Iwo employees are involved in initiating u purchase request. approving a 
purchase, and placing on ordermaking the puirhasc. noting no eyceptions. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

Observed that at least two employees air involved in pmcessing and approving payments to 
vendors. noting no exception.s. 
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The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited fiom adding:modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files, 

Observed that thc employee responsible fir processing payments is not prohihited from 
addinginiodiffing vendor film. 

iv. Either the employee!official responsible for signmg checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

Observed that the employe responsible fir priressing payments is also responsible fir signing 
checks and mailing the signed checks 

. Only employees:ofiicials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) 
of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic fimds transfer (EFT), wire 
transfer, or some other electronic means. 

Observed that only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic 
disbursement (release) of finds, whether through automated clearinghouse (AM electronic 
finds owns.* (EFT). wire transfer, or some other electronic means, noting no arceptions. 

c. For each location selected under procedure ii5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether hy paper or electronic nieans. matched the related 
original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the 
invoice were received by the entity; and 

Observed that the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and supporting 
documentatwn indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received bv the entity, noting 
no exceptions. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure ft5B above, as applicable. 

Observed that for 5 out or the 5 disbursements selected fir te.sting. the disbursements did not have 
documentation including evidence of .segregation of' duties 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
4-3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if 
less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g.. sign checks) per the entity's policy. and (b) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were niade from 
the niain operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month 
and-or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

Observed that fir 5 out of the 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements selectedfir testing, there 
14M 110 approval by only those persons authorized to disburse funds per the entity's policy Also 
observed that fir 5 out of the 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements selected for testing. there 
WM no approval kv the required number gjauthorized signers per the entity's poky. 
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6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

Obtained a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase cards for the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), 
by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such approval that may 
constrain the legal authority of certain public officials such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act 
municipality, should not be reported); and 

Observed that for 5 out of the 5 cards selected for testing, the selected monthly statement and all 
supporting documentation were not reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. 

ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Observed that for 1 out of the 5 cards selected for testing, late fees were assessed on the selected 
monthly statement. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and 
obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 10 transactions 
subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt 
that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, 
and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing 
receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether management 
had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is 
subject to increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forrns/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtained a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov); 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 
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ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased: 

No exceptions Were found as a result of this prvcedure. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
#IA(vii): and 

No exceptions were jimnd as u result of this pwcedure. 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person recening reimbursement. 

No exceptions were fimnd as a result of thrs procedure. 

8) Contracts 

Not applicable. The Town did not have any contracts that were initiated or renewed during the 
fiscal period. 
A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements. contracts for professional services, materials and 

supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) frorn the listing. excluding the practitioner's contract. and: 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g.. 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required hy law, 

NA - Thi.s procedure is not apphcable to the entny. 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body-board, if required by policy or 
law (e g., Lawrason Act. Home Rule Charter): 

- Tins procedure is not apphcahle to the entay. 

If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms 
(e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was documented approval): and 

NA - Thi.s procedure is rwt apphcable to the entny. 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and ohserve that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the temis and conditions of the contract. 

N/A - This procedure is not apphcahle the entay. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries:pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

Obtained u listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period 4.ind nhmagements 
ivresentation that the listing is complete Obtained related paid salaries and personnel .11les and 
ugreecl to authorized salariesipay ream in the persormel files. 



B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leme documentation for the pay penod, and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory ): 

No exceptions we:v.1611nd as u result of this procedure. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials; 

No exceptions were Pund as u result of this procedure. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken durin,2 the pay period is retlected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records; and 

For 5 out of the 5 employees selected for testing. it was noted that any leave accrued or taken 
during the pay period is not reflected in the entity's cumulatiw leaw records 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary:pay rate found 
within thr personnel file. 

It was noted that Pr I out of the 5 employees selected for testing. the Town of Grand Coteau did 
nor hare a personnel .file fin• this employee Therefinr. this attribute could nor be tested jOr this 
employee. 

c. Obtain a hsting of those employees or officials that received ternnnation payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the 
employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's 
authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy. 

For I out of the I termination payments selected fir testing, the f0llowing was noted. We were unable 
to agree the hows used in the termination computation to cumulate leave reconls due to the fact that 
the Town of Grand Coteau has not kept any documentation or records of leave acciunulated or used ky 
employees. and. we ii.ere unable to agree the pay rate used in termination computation to the 
authorized pay rate in employee's personnel file due to the fact thar the Town of Grand Coteau does 
not maintain complete personnel files fi)r their employees. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, 
workers' compensation premiums. etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed. by 
required deadlines. 

Obtained management's representation that employr and employee pornons of payroll taxes, 
retirement contributions. health insurance premiums, garnishments, und workers' compensation 
premiums have been paid, and any associated f0rms have been filed, by required deadlines., noting no 
exceptiolis 

9 



10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees:officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure ()A ohtain 
ethics documentation from management. and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee:official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170: and 

Observed documenkition that demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics 
training during the fiwal perwd. noting no exceptions 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the tiscal period, as 
applicable. 

This attribute could not he tested because the Town of Grand Coteau does not have an EihicN 

B. Inquire and. or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R S. 
42:1170. 

No exceptions were found cis a result of this procedwe. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds.notes and other debt instniments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the hsting is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Conunission approval was obtained for 
each debt instrument issued as required by Article vII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Per discussion with management, it was noted that there were no honds.lnotes or other deht instruments 
issued during the fiscal perwd. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds notes outstanding at the end of the tiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants ( including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset fimds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

No exceptions were found LIS a result (f this procedure 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the inisappropriatiows) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by 
R.S. 24.523. 

Per discussion with management, there were no misappropriations of public or assets during the fiscal 
period. 

B. Observe the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24.523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste. or abuse of public funds. 

Observed that the entity does not have the notice required kr R S. 2-P523.1 concerning the reporting 
of misappropriation, fraud, maw, or abuse of public funds posted on their premises. Note that the 
entity iloe not maintain a website. 
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13) Information Technology Diso.ster Reeovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the t0llowing procedures: 

i. Ohtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if 
no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week (b) was not stored on the 
government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

tre pelyarmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has testediverified that its backups 
can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing'venfying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test'venfication was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We/ie./formed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

Wepolormed the procedure and discussed the results with managonem 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of 
terminated employees ohtained in procedure g9C. Observe evidence that the selected terminated 
employees ha‘e been removed or disabled from the network. 

No exceptions Isere Jima as u result of fins procedure. 

1-1) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employeesnfficials from Payroll and Personnel procedure P9A, obtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates each employee:official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

Observed documentation that dernon.strates each employeeVicial selected fiir testing completed at 
least one hour of sexual harassment training during theliscal period. noting no exceptions 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website 
(or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

Observed that the entity doe.s not have a sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure. 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February l , and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42.344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints receivecl by the agency; 
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Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred, 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective 
action: and 

v. Atnount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

The annual report was not prepared. 

.Vanagement's Response 

Management of the Town of Grand Coteau concurs with the exceptions and are working to address 

the deficiencies identified. 

We were engaged by the Town of Grand Coteau to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auduing 
Standwds. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or re‘iew engagement. the objective 
of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those CiC areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordii.Tly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to he independent of the Town of Grand Coteau and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to descnhe the scope of testing performed on those CC areas identified 
in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Lt-tuisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Kolder, Sloven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountany, 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
December 20, '013 
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